
 
 
Democratic Services Section    
Legal and Civic Services Department 
Belfast City Council 
City Hall 
Belfast  
BT1 5GS 
 
 
 
5th June, 2020 
 
MEETING OF CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE 
 
 

Dear Alderman/Councillor, 

 
The following is a list of reports with recommendations which were due to be considered 
by above-named Committee on Wednesday, 10th June. 
 
These decisions will now be taken by the Chief Executive in accordance with the 
authority delegated to her by the Council. 
 
A table of Recommendations to Committee will also be sent separately by email and 
these should be completed by Party Leaders and returned by the deadline indicated in 
the email. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
SUZANNE WYLIE 
Chief Executive 
 
AGENDA: 
 
1. Routine Matters   
 
 (a) Declarations of Interest   

 
2. Growing Business and the Economy   
 
 (a) Supporting businesses and skills development work: refocusing activities as a 

result of COVID-19  (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 (b) Engagement with Northern Ireland Executive: Committee for the Economy  
(Pages 9 - 12) 

 
3. Regenerating places and Improving Infrastructure   
 
 (a) Engagement with Ministers  (Pages 13 - 18) 

 
 (b) Department for Infrastructure - Active Travel and Social Distancing Measures  

(Pages 19 - 44) 
 

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Subject:  

Supporting businesses and skills development work: refocusing 
activities as a result of COVID-19 

 
Date: 10 June 2020 

 
Reporting Officer: Alistair Reid, Strategic Director of Place and Economy 

 
Contact Officer: John Greer, Director of Economic Development 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes  No  

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision     

After Council Decision     

Some time in the future     

Never     

     

 

Call-in     

 
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  
 

Yes  No  

 

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update members on refocused activity in the field of our 

support for small businesses as well as the employability and skills programme of work.   

 

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1 The Committee is asked to: 

 Note and agree the range of economic development and employability activities to 

be developed and delivered in the coming months, taking account of the impact of 

COVID-19 on the plans originally agreed by the Committee in March 2020. 

3.0 Main report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X  

X 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2a



3.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

At the May meeting of the City Growth and Regeneration Committee, members were advised 

of a range of issues and activities impacting on the work of the Economic Development and 

City Regeneration teams.  The significant economic impact of the pandemic has necessitated 

some refocusing of our work to support business start-ups and small businesses given the 

closure of many businesses and the precarious financial position in which many of our small 

companies currently find themselves.  We have also had to reconsider our proposed 

employability and skills work due to a drop-off in demand from employers and significant new 

on-flows into the labour market of those individuals that have lost their jobs. This approach 

is in keeping with the Response-Recovery-Rebuilding approach previously agreed.   

 

Given the recent announcements around the pending changes to the furlough scheme, it is 

likely that the claimant count will continue to grow in the short-term.  The challenge is 

therefore to try to move the “newly unemployed” back into the labour market as soon as 

possible while ensuring that there continues to be a focus on the long-term unemployed and 

economically inactive in order to support inclusive growth.  However this can only happen 

once the demand from employers starts to grow and the picture on future economic growth 

is unclear at this point.  As the pandemic has continued, the forecasts have generally become 

more pessimistic around the ability of the local economy to “bounce back” quickly.  In its 

revised assessments at the end of May 2020, Ulster University’s Economic Policy Centre 

(UUEPC) suggests that economic output will not recover to 2019 levels until at least 2022. 

 

Additional analysis from the updated UUEPC work includes: 

 Contraction in economic output for 2020 likely to be in the region of 12.7% (up from 

9.6% in UUEPC’s original forecasts in April 2020).  At a local council level, the 

reduction in Belfast is expected to be around 10.6% - slightly below the regional 

average 

 Estimated 249,000 jobs impacted by redundancies or employees placed on furlough 

(also up from previous estimate of 235,000).  This is almost half of all private sector 

employment in the region. The figure for Belfast is estimated at almost 70,000 jobs 

(just under 30% of all jobs in the city) 

 If the trend for Universal Credit claims continues through to the summer, it is likely 

that the unemployment rate could hit 12% by that time (from a previous low earlier 

this year of under 3%) 

 No sectors have escaped the effects of the pandemic but some have fared better 

than others even in the short term. A recent business survey undertaken by the Office 

for National Statistics (ONS) for the period 20 April to 3 May among businesses still 

Page 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

trading (79% of the total respondents) noted that 53% of hospitality firms and 40% of 

construction businesses have reduced working hours compared to just 14% of firms 

in ICT; while more than half of all firms in the construction (59%), transport (54%), 

administrative services (53%) and water and waste management (52%) sectors have 

laid off staff. In other sectors, trends are complex: in manufacturing 9% of firms have 

recruited staff (likely to related to food production), while 39% have let staff go. 

Similarly, in retail, 10% of companies have increased their workforce (likely to be in 

essential retail and also delivery services) while 45% have reduced their payroll.  

 

Given these changes in the broader economic climate and in the labour market, officers have 

been revising some of the planned activity to support new start-ups and existing small 

businesses as well as our employability and skills support.  This work has not only been 

about re-focusing some areas of activity but also reviewing how the activity is delivered, given 

the inability to undertake any face-to-face engagement.  Emerging areas of work in order to 

take account of the economic changes include: 

 

Business start-up and growth:  

 In January this year, we commenced delivery of our enterprise pathway programme.  

This provided additional support for those people who were unemployed/ 

economically inactive and who wanted to start a new business.  Work on this 

programme has continued throughout this period, with delivery taking place online 

where possible.  We have also continued delivery on the “Go for It” start-up support 

programme – the regional programme available to all those interested in starting a 

business.  Given the data above regarding new claimants, we anticipate a possible 

surge in demand for start-up support – either from “necessity entrepreneurs” (those 

starting a business because they cannot find a job elsewhere) or those who have 

been unexpectedly made redundant and who decide to start their own business.  As 

a result, we have re-packaged our Go for It support, providing additional mentor time 

as well as a small financial contribution (up to £1,500) in recognition of how these 

new businesses may have to pivot their original business plan or invest in new 

equipment or technologies.  We are also engaging with the Department for 

Communities to explore how we can pull together the Universal Credit support with 

the other start-up resources to help those who wish to become self-employed, 

thereby removing some of the risk associated with the decision to start a new 

business 

Page 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 We are also working with the Enterprise Research Centre at Aston Business School 

to re-model the start-up offer to take account of the economic forecasts and the 

changed and challenging environment for new starts.  This work will be completed in 

September and will shape our interventions following this initial “response” phase, 

moving us towards the “recovery and rebuilding” phases in this area of work.  This 

will also include exploring new areas of business opportunity in future growth areas 

including those linked to the work of emerging from the Belfast Climate Commission 

 One area of significant growth in demand has been the digital support that we provide 

to businesses.  To date, almost 100 local companies have availed of this support, 

including many of the hospitality businesses that have moved their business online 

in the short term, given that they are unlikely to be re-open fully until step 5 of the 

recovery plan announced by the Northern Ireland Executive on 12 May 2020.  We 

will continue to offer this support to local companies and will also roll out a range of 

webinars throughout June 2020 to support businesses on issues such as “Making 

your website work” and “Using Facebooks Ads/Google Ads to reach new customers”.  

We plan to scale up this support, focusing in particular on the retail sector which has 

been very badly hit by the pandemic.  This should support the work on re-opening the 

city which is being undertaken corporately at present.  

 

Co-operative & Social enterprise support 

 In the March 2020 report to this Committee, we identified the range of support 

available to social enterprises and cooperatives.  The principal programme activity is 

being delivered in partnership with Work West, alongside Cooperative 

Alternatives.  In recognition of the specific challenges that social enterprises and 

cooperatives have faced in accessing some of the Northern Ireland Executive 

incentives, we are proposing to provide an element of financial support to those 

organisations that engage with us through the programme.  The model will be 

tapered, depending on the specific need.  It is proposed that it will be limited to £2,500 

of financial support to mitigate against the business challenges faced as a result of 

COVID-19.  This financial support will replace the previous proposals around 

crowdfunding for the sector.  Under this scheme, the council committed a total of 

£50,000 towards campaigns by 10 businesses.  Two of these campaigns have been 

delivered and the rest are currently under way – although a number have been 

delayed due to COVID-19.  The council funding will leverage a minimum of £50,000 

from other sources to support each of the 10 organisations.  

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 

3.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Feedback from the sector is that, while useful at the time, this funding source is less 

relevant to them in the current situation and they would prefer the mentor support 

with some element of financial contribution to refocus the business in light of the 

current challenges.  

 

Innovation Factory support 

 As part of the corporate decision to grant council tenants a three month rent holiday, 

those businesses located at the Innovation Factory were able to benefit from this 

reduction in overheads.   The Innovation Factory closed at the end of March, although 

some tenants (who were working on critical COVID-related work) were allowed 

limited access to the premises.  Feedback from the operators of the centre suggests 

that, prior to closure, they were concerned that four businesses would leave, equating 

to a reduction in annual revenue in the region of £17,000.  A further seven businesses 

requested urgent support with license fees and, if the payment holiday had not been 

provided, the feedback is that they would probably have exited. The cumulative 

impact of this would have been more than £56,000 over the year.  Given the council 

decision, only one business did exit (ultimately resulting in a loss of £650 per month 

– a potential loss of £7,800 over a year) 

 In working on the recovery planning activity with the Innovation Factory, we are 

pressing the operators to drive up the occupancy levels in the facility and therefore 

increase the income. We intend to package together the start-up programme support 

with the workspace facilities at the Innovation Factory, ensuring a more cohesive 

package of support for new-start businesses. The Innovation Factory operators will 

also refocus their business growth and business innovation support to address the 

resilience challenges that businesses are currently facing. 

 

Employability and skills 

 One of the most successful interventions for the council over the last two to three 

years has been the delivery of our employment academies.  These academies had 

focused on helping the long-term unemployed and economically inactive back into 

work across a range of job roles and business sectors.  Given the changing nature of 

demand, we are currently reviewing all of our academy delivery approaches.  Some 

emerging areas of work include: 

o Continued demand for logistics with new academies and apprenticeships 

currently being explored.  Employers are predicting long-term growth in this 

sector and are working with the council and partners to consider how this can 

Page 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

be serviced.  There are also new job roles likely to emerge, including those 

related to any checks required through the Brexit deal 

o Interest in upskilling academies in social care sector: these provide skills 

support for existing employees to move to levels 3 or 5 in specific job areas.  

This has the advantage of increasing earnings levels for existing employees 

and creating new entry-level vacancies.  We have already had 31 applications 

for 15 places on a new programme and are working with partners to lever 

resources to extend this work. Employers are currently struggling to cope with 

demand in the sector and it has been difficult to talk to them about long-term 

planning but this work is continuing and a revised plan of work is likely to come 

forward over the summer months  

o Exploring new economic growth areas e.g. retro-fitting homes/move towards 

more sustainable construction: we recognise the growing focus on supporting 

sustainable economic growth.  Having developed a range of academies in the 

construction sector, we are now exploring new opportunities to look at “future-

proofing” this offer by investing in “green construction” methods 

o There are a number of sectors – in particularly hospitality – where we consider 

that there is unlikely to be any demand for academies in this financial year.  

We will re-profile our interventions into those areas where we see that there 

will be demand in order to enhance the outcomes for participants engaging 

with us on these activities.    

 

 Given the increase in numbers of those joining the unemployed over recent months, 

we recognise the challenges that this will create for the economically inactive.  

Employers may be more likely to employ those individuals that have recent 

experience of the labour market and that do not need the additional “lead-in” time or 

on-the-job support.  We have identified the opportunity to introduce an “employer 

incentive” scheme as a means of encouraging employers to recruit LTU/economically 

inactive individuals.  Approaches of this type have been implemented in the past and 

have had some success as part of an overall approach to economic recovery.  In this 

case, the proposal would be to provide employers with a financial incentive for taking 

on the LTU/economically inactive.  Employers would be provided with ongoing 

support and investment in skills training for their employees.  The incentive would be 

time-bound and would be dependent on the employer making the case as to the 

likelihood of this developing into a permanent role in the future.  If this project is to 

progress, we will need to secure support from both the Department for Communities 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(DfC) and the Department for the Economy (DfE) and we have had some preliminary 

conversations on the matter 

 One of the consistent issues that has been discussed with partners is the need for 

investment in a significant re-skilling programme – to include those individuals that 

have been furloughed.  It is widely recognised that, in the short-term at least, there 

are a number of sectors that will not be able to sustain pre-COVID levels of 

employment. Once the furlough scheme is reduced or closes, these individuals are 

likely to face the prospect of becoming unemployed.  In keeping with UUEPC and 

other analysis, one area likely to recover more quickly than others is the ICT/financial 

and professional services sector.  This points to need for re-skilling in a range of 

digital skills.  In Belfast, this will be supported by the planned City Deal investment 

which focuses on enhancing productivity and growth by investing in new 

infrastructure which will support the city’s economic transition.  It will be important to 

push ahead with the City Deal proposals and to engage with DfE on a significant 

digital re-skilling initiative across a range of business sectors.  This will be a critical 

element of the work programme in the Summer months and will also align with the 

employability and skills work as part of City Deal 

 The changing nature of unemployment as well as the evolving delivery models (move 

to online and blended training and engagement) mean that it is difficult to get a full 

picture of the support resources available to help people back into work as well as 

available jobs.  A number of research papers have identified the value of online 

portals as a means of pulling together information on available jobs as well as all 

relevant support services.  We have been engaging with Greater Manchester who 

have recently developed a portal called “Employ GM” and are working with partners 

to explore the value and merit of this in the local context.  

 

Education: supporting inclusion 

 One of the key projects in the March 2020 employability and skills work plan was the 

roll-out of the GCSE programme across the city.  This was an intensive support 

initiative for those that risked not achieving at least a C grade in English and Maths.  

One of the key elements of the programme was an Easter School and this had to be 

cancelled as a result of COVID-19.  We are currently re-shaping the programme to 

pick up those young people that may have missed out most significantly by not 

attending school.  Proposals currently being developed include an intensive 

programme at Hallowe’en for Year 12 students and additional support for year 11 

Page 7



 

 

 

 

 

 

3.10 

 

 

 

 

3.11 

 

 

 

3.12 

students that may have fallen back due to not being in school.  We will also explore 

additional opportunities for targeting support, including focusing on reducing the 

attainment levels between those in receipt of free school meals and those who are 

not.  This is an important element of the approach to inclusive development in the city 

 

Social Value Procurement 

Work is also well underway to develop frameworks to enable both Council and other partners 

to better support local businesses and local supply chains via social procurement and “buying 

local” initiatives.  A further report will be brought back on this inititive. 

 

Financial and resource implications 

The resources for the activities identified above will be met within the budgets previously 

approved at the City Growth and Regeneration Committee on 6 March 2020. 

 

Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment 

Many of these activities are aimed at reducing inequalities.   

 

4.0 Appendices – Documents Attached  

 None 

 

Page 8



 

CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE 
 
 

 
Subject:  

Engagement with Northern Ireland Executive: Committee for the 
Economy 

 
Date: 10 June 2020 

 
Reporting Officer: Alistair Reid, Strategic Director of Place and Economy 

 
Contact Officer: John Greer, Director of Economic Development 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes  No  

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision     

After Council Decision     

Some time in the future     

Never     

     

 

Call-in     

 
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  
 

Yes  No  

 

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 

 The purpose of this report is to update members on the recent engagement of the Chief 

Executive with the Northern Ireland Executive’s Economy Committee.   

 

2.0 Recommendations 

 The Committee is asked to: 

 Note the recent engagement of the Chief Executive with the Northern Ireland 

Executive’s Committee for the Economy 

 Note the opportunities identified to enhance the partnership working with government 

departments to support an inclusive economic recovery and take a place-based 

approach to economic development in the future. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X  

X 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2b



3.0 Main report 

 

3.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2 

 

 

 

 

3.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

At the May meeting of the City Growth and Regeneration Committee, members were advised 

of a range of issues and activities impacting on the work of the Economic Development and 

City Regeneration teams.  As the work has progressed, there has been significant 

engagement with our public and private partners to explore the best approach to supporting 

the inclusive economic recovery in the city.  This has led to formal engagement with a number 

of institutions including the Northern Ireland Assembly as well as the creation of a series of 

task forces and working groups, many of which have representation from the local 

government sector. 

 

The Council’s Chief Executive was recently asked to present to the 26 May 2020 meeting of 

the Northern Ireland Executive’s Committee for the Economy, representing SOLACE 

alongside Anthony Tohill, Chief Executive of Mid Ulster Council as well as Cllr Stephen 

Moutray, Chair of NILGA’s Economy and International Affairs Working Group. 

 

The speakers used the opportunity to make the case for the key role that councils can and 

do play in supporting economic development in their local areas.  They also argued the need 

for enhanced engagement between local and central government in designing and delivering 

solutions for local economic growth and supporting local communities, as well as articulating 

the case for a more coherent and focused financing model to support local economies.  Key 

points raised included: 

 The need for a co-design approach to public policy to support local economies – 

underlining the role of councils as key delivery partners (rather than stakeholders) 

and asking for earlier and more systematic engagement with central government in 

the roll-out of recovery plans as well as in future approaches to economic 

development 

 The challenging financial position that councils are currently facing as a result of 

reduction to income 

 The need for a coherent approach across government to supporting economic 

development – recognition that this doesn’t just sit with the Department for the 

Economy but that other Departments (Communities, Education, Agriculture and Rural 

Affairs) are undertaking activities that impact on local economies – not all of which 

are joined-up or complementary 

Page 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.4 

 

 The need for investment in significant re-skilling programmes – both for those who 

are still in the labour market (to enhance productivity) and those who are unemployed 

or under-employed (to meet future skills needs), with a particular focus on digital skills 

 The significant challenges faced by the increase in unemployment and the 

disproportionate impact on key groups – including those who are already 

disadvantaged and young people 

 The importance of apprenticeships for the future of the economy and the need to 

reconsider how these operate – taking account of the challenging financial position 

of local businesses 

 The ability of councils to deliver on the ground – as demonstrated through the work 

to date in local areas as well as emerging strategic work in areas such as City Deals 

and Growth Deals.  Councils have shown how they can develop locally-relevant 

solutions to support a place-based approach to economic growth, and attract 

alternative financial resources to support delivery.  This underlines the point that the 

role of councils in local economic development has moved significantly beyond the 

traditional view of delivering EU funds for small business support.  It also 

demonstrates that councils can support the delivery of activity that contributes to the 

outcomes set out in regional government strategies (e.g. Industrial Strategy)  

 The shortcomings of the way in which local economic development is funded: there 

is currently no direct funding from government to local councils to deliver support to 

local businesses and stimulate local economies – even though there are around 

30,000 local SMEs supporting more than 20% of the workforce, and these are key 

constituents for the council support.  These are businesses that fall outside of the 

Invest NI client company criteria.  Apart from council resources, these companies 

have access to limited support only largely EU funding channelled through INI to 

Councils for very specific programmes. 

 The leadership role that councils are currently playing in economic recovery: councils 

are on the frontline of service delivery and are also a trusted partner.  As a result, 

businesses and representative organisations are turning to councils to seek 

leadership in developing local recovery and re-opening plans.  Government 

departments therefore need to engage with councils to give them insight into 

emerging thinking so that we can mobilise our resources to ensure that our local 

areas are ready in good time.  

 

Following the local government intervention, there were a number of asks and agreed 

actions: 

Page 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.5 

 

 

3.6 

 Request from local government for the establishment of a Task Force working across 

the public and private sector to support a sustainable economic recovery.  This Task 

Force would cover a range of areas including economic development, skills, climate 

change and infrastructure investment.  The work would focus on coordinating and 

maximising funding opportunities, enhancing outcomes and ensuring that resources 

are targeted on areas of most need  

 Request from the Committee for the local government representatives to present a 

paper outlining how councils can play a key role in supporting the government’s work 

on re-opening local towns and cities 

 Request from councils to play a role in the design and delivery of the Shared 

Prosperity Fund – no substantial role for local government in this area of work to date 

 Request from councils to consider a longer financial framework (multi-annual basis) 

(not necessarily within the gift of the Committee for the Economy but has been 

discussed with Finance Committee) 

 Request from councils to ensure that future economic strategies also take a place-

based approach to economic regeneration – and that they have a role in both their 

development and delivery. 

 

Financial and resource implications 

No specific financial or resource implications at this time. 

 

Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment 

The engagement on behalf of SOLACE covers local councils all across Northern Ireland. 

 

4.0 Appendices – Documents Attached  

 None  

 

Page 12



 

CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE 
 

 
 
 

 
Subject:  Engagement with Ministers 

 
Date: 10 June 2020 

 
Reporting Officer: 

 
Cathy Reynolds, Director City Regeneration and Development 
John Greer, Director of Economic Development 

Contact Officer: 
 
Cathy Reynolds, Director City Regeneration and Development 
John Greer, Director of Economic Development 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes  No  

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision     

After Council Decision     

Some time in the future     

Never     

     

 

Call-in     

 
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  
 

Yes  No  

 

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 

1.1 
 

To advise Members of ongoing engagement with Ministers in the context of priorities 

aligned to the CG&R committee plans and emerging Covid-19 recovery plans. 

2.0 Recommendations 
 

2.1 The Committee is asked to note:  

 The correspondence with the DfI, DfC and DfE Ministers. 

 Party Group Leaders met with the Minister for Infrastructure on the 2nd June in 

relation to active travel and social distancing measures. 

 A meeting with Minister Hargey and Party Group Leaders is to take place in the 

very near future 

 

 

 

 

 

  

x 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3a



 The Minister for Economy has been contacted via SOLACE in relation to funding for 

the safe re-opening of businesses and revitalisation of city centres in line with 

funding available in England as well as the refocusing of ERDF spend to support 

local businesses. 

3.0 Main report 
 

3.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Members will be aware that a number of priorities as set out within the agreed CG&R 

Committee plan are closely aligned to the work of various central government departments. 

This has required close working between the Council and the Departments concerned, and 

given the issues arising from the Covid-19 pandemic, it is recognised that this collaborative 

working will be more critical than ever, particularly as we move towards a City Recovery 

Plan. 

 

The Chief Executive contacted the Minister for Communities and Minister for Infrastructure   

in the context of ongoing collaborative work, highlighting the desire of the Council to work 

closely with their respective Departments, particularly given the immediate COVID-19 

pandemic situation, as well as longer term recovery proposals set within an ambition of 

rebuilding a better city from an environmental, economic and social community cohension/ 

perspective.  

 

Members will be aware that a meeting with the Minister for Infrastructure and Party Group 

Leaders took place on 2 June 2020 in relation to walking and cycling provision, and the 

aspirations of both the Department for Infrastructure and the Council in this regard. A 

separate report is being presented to this committee regarding the DfI proposals but it is to 

be welcomed that the Minister embraced the principle of working in partnership with the 

Council to achieve city recovery (including arterial routes) and was receptive to the 

proposals and ideas put forward by Members.   

 

Initial proposals to the Department for Infrastructure include: 

 Endorsing The Bolder Vision Connectivity Study and to commit to the next phases, 

including jointly bringing forward short, medium and long term interventions focused 

on reimagining our spaces and active travel; 

 Working with businesses, as part of a wider stakeholder group, as they seek to 

reopen, addressing issues on social distancing, travel options and infrastructure / 

connectivity; 

 Working on finding a solution to the requirements for our water infrastructure to 

support the ambition in the LDP; 

Page 14



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Supporting progression of work on a higher speed rail connection between Belfast 

and Dublin; 

 Expediting the Belfast Metropolitan Transport Strategy based on active and 

sustainable travel, and collectively progressing our Local Development Plan; 

 Consider making a capital contribution towards the “Reconnecting Open Spaces, 

Peace IV Project”, as well as other key priority projects in our city to improve 

connections to local communities and to expand the sustainable transport network. 

 

Minister Mallon did point out that her budget would need to be increased to enable the 

significant investment needed. 

 

A meeting is also being arranged with Minister Hargey and Party Group Leaders. The initial 

correspondence with Minister Hargey highlighted the desire to continue to work 

collaboratively with DfC on a range of issues, including: 

 Endorsing The Bolder Vision and committing the next phases, noting the DfC ask to 

ensure that its scope explicitly includes the surrounding communities; 

 Requesting that DfC are closely involved in the work of all stakeholders on short 

term measures to support social distancing measures and active travel; 

 Considering immediate issues around the imaginative use of civic spaces and DfC 

assets to assist businesses and the public, and to help give confidence to the safe 

re-opening of the city including an urgent review of licensing legislation; 

 Working closely to help future proof the long term viability of the city centre through 

amplifying the diversification of uses, including more housing, use of public spaces 

and improvements to public realm; 

 Exploring how we can work together to recast the priorities of the Future City Centre 

Programme in terms of activities focusing on sustainable development of the city 

Centre.  Includes issues to address vacancies; city centre vitality, city centre living; 

positioning the city to compete and policy and legislative issues; 

 Highlighting the UK Future High Street Fund (as available in England) aimed at 

regenerating town and city centres, and the potential for a similar scheme here;  

 Seeking to work closely with DfC on measures to address the shortage of housing 

supply across the city, in particular the supply of mixed tenure residential housing in 

the city centre; and the enhanced opportunities arising from a collective approach to 

public sector lands; 

 DfC support to ensuring that the Government Office Relocation Programme gives 

strong weight to regeneration benefits and impact; 

Page 15



 

 

 

 

3.6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.8 

 

 

 Requesting the Department’s adoption of Masterplans aligned with the Belfast City 

Centre Regeneration & Investment Strategy, which will support bringing forward 

development and inclusive economic growth opportunities. 

 

On behalf of the 11 councils, NILGA has recently written to the Minister for the Economy 

Diane Dodds MLA to clarify the position with ERDF funds and to ask for flexibility in how 

they are utilised – focusing on job retention rather than job creation at this time.  The 

Minister responded by noting that her Department was in discussions with Invest NI on 

“utilising the remaining funds by offering the councils an opportunity to come up with a 

collaborative project to help alleviate the impact of Covid-19 on small and micro businesses 

in local council areas”.  Officers are currently working with counterparts in other council 

areas to explore the most expedient and beneficial method for drawing down these 

resources, given the pressing current need.   

 

The Chief Executive – in her capacity as the SOLACE representative on the Economic 

Recovery Task Force – has written to Minister Dodds to ask her to consider allocating 

resources to local authorities to support the work of re-opening our town and city centres. 

On 24 May 2020, the UK High Streets Minister Simon Clarke MP announced the 

establishment of the “Reopening High Streets Safely Fund”.  This fund utilises ERDF 

funding to support a range of activities including: 

 Support to develop an action plan for safe re-opening of local economies 

 Communications and public information activity to ensure that reopening of local 

economies can be managed successfully and safely 

 Business-facing awareness raising activities to ensure that reopening of local 

economies can be managed successfully and safely  

 Temporary public realm changes to ensure that reopening of local economies can 

be managed successfully and safely.  

 

The request to Minister Dodds asked her to consider the introduction of a similar scheme in 

Northern Ireland.  As the Northern Ireland Executive makes its announcements regarding 

the progressing along the “Pathway to Recovery” set out on 12 May 2020, local businesses 

will be looking to their councils to support them in managing the public realm, ensuring 

coherent and consistent messaging around opening and the safety of local places, and 

providing practical support and guidance to ensure compliance with the regulations.   

3.9 Finance & Resource Implications 

 No financial implications at this stage. 

Page 16



3.10 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment 

 No implications at this stage. 

4.0 Appendices – Documents Attached 

 None 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
CITY GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 

 
Subject: DfI Active Travel and Social Distancing Measures  

 
Date: 10 June 2020    

 
Reporting Officer: Cathy Reynolds, Director, City Regeneration and Development  

 
Contact Officer: Callie Persic, Regeneration Project Officer 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes  No  

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision     

After Council Decision     

Some time in the future     

Never     

     

 

Call-in     

 
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  
 

Yes  No  

 

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 

1.1 

 

To update Members on the work with DfI in relation to social distancing measures and 

active travel. 

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1 The Committee is asked to:   

 Note the Minister of Infrastructure’s proposals as set out below in relation to social 

distancing measures and active travel in the context of a ‘green’ recovery. 

 Note the Council’s opportunity to work with DfI to identify opportunities and practical 

solutions and support officers working with DfI on this. 

 Note that the Council will revert with Members views and a collective proposition 

around short, medium and longer term interventions and solutions aligned to the 

Ministers ambitions, recognising that this will be an iterative process.   

 

 

 

 

 

X  

X 

Page 19

Agenda Item 3b



 Note that the DfI and DfC Ministers have been asked to endorse the Bolder Vision 

Connectivity Study and commit to progressing the future phases and seek to embed 

the framework in Programme for Government.  

 Support the partnership project with Ulster University and DfI in relation to 

monitoring the social distancing measures to inform longer-term changes. 

3.0 Main report 

3.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.2 

 

 

 

 

3.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.4 

 

 

 

 

 

As the city continues to plan for a phased removal of COVID-19 restrictions, the Minister for 

Infrastructure has announced various proposals to help shape recovery, enable social 

distancing and give people confidence to come back into towns and cities. The impact of 

the reduced capacity of the public transportation network also requires consideration of 

measures to provide additional priority spacing for sustainable transport measures, 

primarily promoting cycling and walking. 

 

On 17 April, Council wrote to the DfI Minister highlighting the support across the eight 

political parties for the reallocation of road space to walking and cycling during the 

pandemic.  Council officers have been working closely with the DfI to bring forward 

measures and interventions in line with this proposal. 

 

The Minister for the Department of Infrastructure has now appointed a Walking and Cycling 

Champion within the department and has set up an Advisory Group that includes 

representation from Council, DfC, Sustrans, IMTAC Belfast Chamber, among others, to 

bring forward the Ministers ambition to:  

 focus on a ‘green’ recovery where active ways of travelling will form the core of the 

overall transport policy; 

 Trial and test temporary interventions that may led to longer term change, including 

widening footpaths, pop-up cycle lanes, pedestriansing streets and improving 

sustainable transport connectivity to local hospitals; 

 support communities, particularly those in disadvantaged inner city communities 

who do not have easy access to space for recreation and leisure who could benefit 

from repurposed road space 

 

The Chief Executive wrote to Minister Mallon on 14 May highlighting the opportunity to 

work collaboratively with her Department to support this work.  There is a separate report to 

Committee on this in the context of Minister engagement.   

 

Page 20



3.5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.6 

 

 

 

 

 

3.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.8 

 

 

 

3.9 

 

 

 

 

3.10 

 

In a letter to Councils on 29 May the Minister re-iterated her intentions on this active travel 

and social distancing work. She highlighted that some areas had already been identified in 

Belfast but she intended to work with Councils to identify more as a matter of urgency.  She 

advised of her intention to announce a number of pop-up cycle lanes and was especially 

keen to improve links to hospitals.  The importance of collaborative working and the role 

local government can play in harnessing the opportunities to reshape our cities was 

highlighted.  The Minister referred to the ‘can-do’ approach of the Councils her officials had 

been working with so far. She encouraged BCC to bring forward their own ideas and 

identify opportunities and possible interventions.  

 

Council officers are currently working closely with the DfI to bring forward short-term 

interventions with a clear focus on public health, air quality, climate, sustainable travel and 

equity. These interventions will enable recovery in both the short term, and through the 

trialling of short-term pilot interventions, could potentially result in more comprehensive 

improvements and longer-term transformation.  

 

Some initial temporary measures are as below, with further announcements expected in 

the coming weeks:  

 widening pavements 

 additional/new cycle lanes and reduced speed limits 

 pedestrian priority streets 

 limiting access to residential streets to facilitate play and exercise 

 traffic signal phasing 

 bicycle cages 

 

It is critical that these measures are implemented immediately to have the infrastructure in 

place prior to businesses reopening. Consideration of key arterial routes / commercial 

nodes, as well as the city centre is important.   

 

Clear and frequent messaging and a public awareness campaign is required to restore 

public confidence and to identify the active measures in place to promote health and 

wellbeing during the phased relaxation of current restrictions and officers are working with 

DfI to further develop these plans.    

 

Officers are also working with DfI to develop and accelerate longer term interventions 

across the city including the pedestrian and cycling re-prioritisation of the Fredrick St 

Page 21



 

 

 

3.11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.12 

 

 

 

3.13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Junction, Peace IV, the Ormeau Bridge and improving connections and opportunities to 

local communities.  

 

In August 2019, Council, DfC and DfI agreed to jointly commission the first phase of the 

City Centre Connectivity Study aimed at providing a shared vision for the city centre to 

create a more attractive, accessible, safe and vibrant city centre which will improve 

economic, social and environmental wellbeing for all. Phase 1 is now complete and the 

‘draft Bolder Vision for Belfast’ was ratified by Council in March 2020. The key principles of 

the Vision, as below, can provide a framework for incorporating social distancing measures 

across the city, and through further work inform the longer term infrastructure interventions 

required to lead a modal shift and to enable a green recovery. 

 

 Creating a healthy, shared, vibrant and sustainable environment that promotes 

well-being for all, inclusive growth and innovation   

 Fundamentally changing the centre of Belfast to prioritise integrated walking, 

cycling and public transport and end the dominance of the car 

 Providing lively, safe, and green streets linking inclusive shared spaces to 

promote resilience and enhance our built heritage  

 Removing severance and barriers to movement between the centre of Belfast and 

the surrounding communities to improve access for all  

 

The draft Vision requires endorsement from the DfC and DfI Ministers and a commitment to 

progress to the next Phases to identify the key infrastructure and interventions required to 

enable the changing landscape of the city. 

 

The Minister and Party Group Leaders met on 2 June to discuss improving walking and 

cycling provision, both for social distancing and health reasons and to identify other 

opportunities for active travel in both the short and long term. Members were supportive of 

the proposals coming forward.  Various issues were discussed including the need for 

improved cycling infrastructure and segregated cycle-ways; further pedestrianisation 

possibilities; Park and Ride provision; opportunities for Greenways; the Dublin to Belfast 

high speed rail; inner city residents parking issues; Belfast Metropolitan Transport Plan; 

clean air zones and ensuring that the needs of elderly people were considered with 

proposed interventions. The importance of re-imagining the city centre was highlighted, 

whilst also ensuring that the arterial routes were fully considered as part of the reopening of 

the city process and planned interventions.    Moving to the next phases of the Bolder 

Vision, as a three way partnership with DfI/DfC/BCC, was discussed in the context of 

Page 22



 

 

 

3.14 

 

 

 

 

3.15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.16 

 

 

 

 

3.17 

setting a clear plan for the re-imagining of the city centre and links to the surrounding 

communities.   

 

The Minister highlighted her desire to work closely with Members to bring forward 

interventions based on local knowledge and constituent/area issues and sought the support 

of Members on proposed interventions. Close working between Council officers and DfI 

was emphasised as being critical moving forward.   

 

It was agreed that the Council would revert to the Minister and her Department with the 

various issues raised by Members alongside other proposals that officers had also been 

considering. This collective proposition can consider short, medium and longer term 

interventions and solutions aligned to the Ministers ambitions – recognising that this will be 

an iterative process, but highlighting the extent of the Council’s ambitions across the city.  

However, it has to be recognised that the transport planning and engineering expertise sits 

within DfI.  Further, there are clear capital implications for DfI in taking forward any 

interventions and it is unclear how this work is to be financed at this stage. 

 

The opportunity to work closely with DfI is welcomed although consideration is required as 

to the optimal mechanism to ensure a longer term joined up approach, including how this is 

financed and resourced to ensure embedment of proposals within Departmental priorities. 

 

For the short and medium term interventions it is proposed to undertake monitoring and 

data collection, including engagement with users, communities and stakeholders to 

evaluate the success of the interventions and to inform and secure longer term 

interventions aimed at promoting modal shift. Officers are currently exploring a potential 

partnership project with Ulster University and DfI that would capture this information and 

help inform future interventions. 

 Finance & Resource Implications 

3.18 The proposed interventions are being led by DfI and any financial implications for the 

Council are unknown at this stage. Any proposals that may require a Council financial 

commitment will be brought through the appropriate approvals process.  The cost of the 

proposed joint DfI/BCC monitoring project with UU will be funded from within departmental 

budgets.   

 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment 

3.19 The proposed interventions are being progressed by DfI, who will be responsible for 

considering equality and good relations implications. 

Page 23



4.0 Appendices – Documents Attached  

 Appendix 1: A Bolder Vision for Belfast 

 

Page 24



A BOLDER VISION FOR BELFAST
Reimagining the Centre 
Draft
December 2019

Page 25



CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION .........................................................1
THE JOURNEY ........................................................... 2
CASE FOR CHANGE .................................................... 3
DEFINING THE PROJECT PRINCIPLES ............................ 4
LEARNING FROM OTHER CITIES ...................................5
THE VISIONING PRINCIPLES ....................................... 6
THE VISION .............................................................10
WHAT IF? ................................................................12
NEXT STEPS ............................................................16

Page 26



Draft

1

INTRODUCTION

A bolder Belfast is the City’s vision to transform the 
centre of Belfast. 

Like many coastal cities Belfast faces unprecedented 
challenges to build resilience and overcome the risks 
posed by climate change. At the same time it must 
also tackle a range of other challenges including how 
to improve its air quality and adjust to the needs of an 
aging population. Now is the time for bold decisions 
to deliver the changes we need. All of us must take 
individual responsibility if we are to achieve this 
transformation.

Fundamentally, this requires a significant re-think of 
how the City’s streets and places are used to make them 
attractive, healthy, vibrant and accessible places where 
people want to be. Drawing upon our uniqueness we 
will protect and grow the diverse uses of the city centre 
which in turn will drive inclusive growth for the city 
centre.

The City has ambitious targets for sustainable economic 
growth and to enhance wellbeing for all, as set out in 
the Belfast Agenda. It sets out that “Belfast will be a 
city reimagined and resurgent. A great place to live and 
work for everyone”. The centre of Belfast will act as the 
principal driver for this ambition. With a dynamic mix 
of land uses it will provide the catalyst for widespread 
change across Northern Ireland. However, in order to 
achieve sustainable and inclusive economic growth 
that responds to the underlying challenges faced by 
the City, a radical approach is needed to reimagine how 
the centre of Belfast works best for the people who 
collectively own it.  

The dominance of the car in the centre of Belfast must 
end. Far too much space is devoted to an inefficient 
and unsustainable means of transporting people to and 
across the City, which we know significantly contributes 
to the problems of air quality, severance and inequality 
of access faced by those living, working and visiting the 
centre of Belfast.

A Bolder Vision for Belfast therefore sets out how a 
green, walkable, cyclable network of streets and places 
will improve health for all, revitalise the City’s economy 
and restore a sense of collective pride in the centre of 
the City by the communities within and around it.

The Vision has been developed collectively by Belfast 
City Council, the Department for Infrastructure 
and the Department for Communities with broad 
stakeholder input. This reflects the overwhelming 
consensus that something fundamentally needs to 
change to realise the ambition and protect the collective 
interests of the city’s communities and visitors.  

It aligns to the underlying policy context of sustainable 
and inclusive economic growth, regeneration and 
accessibility for all that is set out in the Regional 
Development Strategy, the Belfast Agenda and the 
Belfast City Centre Regeneration and Investment 
Strategy. But it recognises that these policies 
and strategies do not go far enough to achieve 
the fundamental change needed to deliver on the 
ambitions of the draft Programme for Government to 
improve wellbeing for all by tackling disadvantage and 
driving economic growth.

As we set out in this Vision, there is no time for delay 
in making the bold decisions needed to achieve this 
ambition. The time for a bolder Belfast is now.

Page 27



1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

2

3

4

INTERNATIONAL 
BEST 
PRACTICE + 
URBAN TRENDS

OPPORTUNITIES

CONSTRAINTS

BELFAST 
TODAY?

www.belfastcity.gov.uk

POLICY REVIEWEVIDENCE BASED

8 KEY THEMES FOR CHANGE

DEVELOPING
THE VISION

CASE FOR
CHANGE

RESIDENTS + STAKEHOLDER 
WORKSHOPS

DRAFT VISION

INCEPTION WORKSHOP

PROJECT 
KICK-OFF

+ 4 VISIONING
PRINCIPLES

A BOLDER 
BELFAST

?!?

4

BELFAST 
TOMORROW?

DRAFT 
VISION 
REPORT

A Bolder Vision for Belfast

2

THE JOURNEY
Following the fire at the Bank Buildings in August 2018, 
Belfast City Council, the Department for Infrastructure 
and the Department for Communities agreed to work 
jointly to explore options to create a functioning and 
successful city centre. In parallel, a public debate 
developed around the uses and function of the city 
centre. 

A Bolder Vision for Belfast has been produced 
in response to this and is grounded on a strong 

understanding and agreement of the key problems 
and opportunities facing Belfast. As part of the journey, 
we have reviewed what other cities are doing to 
address similar challenges and considered existing 
local policies. This led to the identification of eight 
key themes which, through focussed engagement 
with stakeholder and community groups have been 
funnelled to four visioning principles which inform this 
Vision. 

Page 28



!!

?
?

+ !!

?
?

+ !!

?
?

+ !!

?
?

+

!!

?
?

+!!

?
?

+

Draft

3

CASE FOR CHANGE

We must address the 
climate emergency 

Our population is 
changing

Our economy is 
changing

Our streets are clogged 
with traffic

Our centre of Belfast is 
not accessible by all

• The operation of our buildings, streets and places 
need to be more resilient 

• We need to protect the city from an increased risk 
of flooding and other extreme weather events

• The poor air quality in parts of our city isn’t 
acceptable or sustainable

• We will have more older people

• The student population is also increasing and we 
need to retain their talent

• These changes are placing new and growing 
demands on mobility and access to public 
services including housing, schools and 
healthcare

• The nature of high streets is changing. In Belfast, 
we have too many vacant retail units and need to 
diversify our streets

• Working patterns and employment opportunities 
are changing, but our business start-up rates are 
too low 

• The city centre is diversifying its land use to 
improve conditions to live, work and visit

• Too many journeys are made by car often with 
only one person in the car

• Even with significant investment in public 
transport, car journeys are forecast to grow by 
2030

• We need bold change to make space for 
prioritising walking, cycling and public transport 
to halt significant congestion and improve air 
quality

• We know that those with a disability make 39% 
fewer journeys than those without

• Roads and junctions have created physical 
barriers between communities and the city centre

• We must let people know that the city centre 
belongs to them and overcome issues around 
belonging

The Time is Now

Underlining all these challenges is one 
key opportunity:  a growing recognition 
that something needs to be done. 

Policy, strategy and public engagement 
are all moving in the same direction, 
and now is the time for Belfast to 
fundamentally change the way that its 
centre works for everyone and to protect 
the future of the city.

Page 29



A Bolder Vision for Belfast

4

DEFINING THE PROJECT PRINCIPLES  

Themes for change Visioning Principles

City Centre as an Inclusive Place 
to Live, Work and Visit

Community Focused 
Regeneration 

Remove Reliance on Car 
Travel

Prioritise Walking, Cycling & 
Public Transport

Vibrant and Safe Streets

Active and Inclusive Public 
Realm and Green Spaces

Overcoming Severance with 
Surrounding Communities

Embracing our Rivers

Creating a healthy, shared, vibrant and 
sustainable environment that promotes 
wellbeing for all, inclusive growth and 
innovation.

Fundamentally changing the centre of Belfast 
to prioritise integrated walking, cycling and 
public transport and end the dominance of 
the car. 

Providing lively, safe and green streets 
linking inclusive shared spaces to promote 
resilience and enhance our built heritage.

Removing severance and barriers to 
movement between the centre of Belfast 
and the surrounding communities to improve 
access for all. 

The Visioning Principles below were developed from the 
eight themes for change, refined through Community 
and Stakeholder Workshops. 

The eight key themes for the centre of Belfast have led 
to the selection of best practice cities across the globe 
to inform A Bolder Vision for Belfast.

1

2

3

4

Page 30



Draft

5

Ambition
To improve social and economic activity in the city 
centre and riverfront as a result of de-industrialisation, 
and encourage in-migration to increase the residential 
population in Liverpool city centre.
How they realised their vision
Harness the local heritage, urban fabric and local 
culture to create a unique town centre environment; 
attractive creative industries, night life and city-centre 
living. Use of green corridors to tackle issues such as 
flooding, air quality, climate change and health and 
wellbeing through ‘nature based solutions’ - providing 
sustainable transport corridors and introducing nature 
into the city centre.

Ambition
To create a greener and more inclusive city for all - a city 
with less cars to make way for a more vibrant and active 
city centre.
How they realised their vision
Needed to provide transport choice and develop an 
inclusive city centre. Adoption of Climate Budget 2020 
following Paris Agreement built around transport, 
energy and buildings and Resource Efficiency, 42 
measures quantifying emission cuts by 2020 and an 
exemplary public procurement.

Ambition
To become a world class bicycle city, where twice as 
many bicycle journeys are made towards 2030 and 
people of all ages can safely and comfortably access 
important nodes of the city cycling.
How they realised their vision
Walking and cycling prioritised and backed by policy 
and law to create a safe city centre.
Some central areas of the city are only accessible by 
bike, bus and foot, and private vehicles are not allowed. 
Cycling routes as a way of connecting communities 
Reconfiguration and redesign of roads to discourage car 
travel, and encourage behavioural shift to travelling by 
bike as an everyday occurrence.

LEARNING FROM OTHER CITIES
Liverpool

Oslo

Utrecht

Page 31



1

A Bolder Vision for Belfast

6

Creating a healthy, shared, vibrant and sustainable environment that 
promotes wellbeing for all, inclusive growth and innovation.

City Centre as an Inclusive Place to Live, Work and Visit

Community Focused Regeneration 

“ ”
This principle is underpinned by the following key themes for change:

THE VISIONING PRINCIPLES

Strengths Challenges

The Belfast Agenda sets ambitious targets for the city in 
terms of demographics and economic activity by 2035 
as a regional capital. With the residential population 
growing by 66,000 residents, the centre of Belfast has a 
historical opportunity to be at the heart of that change 
and transform the urban centre. 

The availability of vacant, derelict and underused land 
such as surface car parking, provides the platform to the 
city to be re-shaped. This is an opportunity to rethink our 
land use to create a vibrant and diverse city, with people 
who live, work, play and learn in Belfast City Centre in 
balance with visitors and surrounding communities. 

The centre of Belfast currently has low levels of 
residential population compared to the wider 
region. This is due to many reasons, including a lack 
of community infrastructure and amenity spaces, 
as well as a shortage of new housing and mixed use 
developments. A forecast increase in the student 
population and associated accommodation could also 
create an unbalanced demographic for the city. 

The city is facing the challenge of maximising the value 
of educational institutions to retain the young talent by 
creating jobs that match their skills and vice versa.

IT and Legal sector 
growth/digital economy

Re-use buildings with 
an existing heritage

Use vacant space for 
green-blue infrastructure

Diversify population to 
reflect all generations

New student 
population

Opportunity for 
intergenerational interaction

Re-use multi-storey retail 
buildings into housing

Low cost city to live in 
comparison to other 
parts of UK

Availability of city 
centre land

2 well placed 
universities

Lack of active public 
realm/ outdoor gyms

Poor air qualityLack of essential services 
to support living

Lack of activity 
after 5pm

Lack of Green Space and 
play areas for Children

Underpopulated city centre

Split in demographics - 
more students

Development-led regeneration 
has failed in inner city 
communities elsewhere

Page 32



Draft

7

This principle is underpinned by the following key themes for change:

Strengths Challenges

Fundamentally changing the centre of Belfast to prioritise integrated 
walking, cycling and public transport and end the dominance of the car. 

Remove Reliance on Car Travel

Prioritise Walking, Cycling and Public Transport

”“

A re-balanced street network offers a great 
opportunity to provide quality spaces that promotes 
walking, cycling and public transport to travel to/from 
and across the city. Reduced levels of private vehicle 
use give more space for people who walk and cycle and 
a more effective and reliable public transport network. 

Easy interconnection between these transport modes 
is also essential. The enhancement and creation of 
interchange hubs around the city is an opportunity to 
transform the way people move around and in and out 
of the city, promoting walking and cycling for last mile 
journeys. 

Presently the public realm is vastly dominated by road 
traffic negatively impacting on wellbeing in a multitude 
of ways and generating an unfriendly walking 
environment and congestion, which undermines public 
transport reliability. There is a disconnected cycle 
network, that hinders cycling as a way to commute or 
simply as an everyday way of getting about.

The public transport routes often require users to go 
across the city. The wider availability and comparatively 
low costs of parking encourages continued reliance on 
private cars for travel in and out of the city. 

2

Remove non-essential 
car journeys

Reuse of surface parking for 
mixed use and green spaces

A lot of street 
space available

Improved public 
transport, Glider 
Phase 2

Additional bridges 
over the river

Integrated 
ticketing scheme

Improve walking and cycling 
experience from Yorkgate Station

Existing cycleway network 
can be further linked

Space can be allocated for 
walking, cycling and public 
transport

Reconfiguring of 
street space to 
waking and cyclingHealth Agenda 

- focus on air 
quality, climate

Poor cycle connections 
and facilities

Journey times are 
unreliable

Dominance of 
street parking

Bus journeys all with 
interchange in centre

Roads & cars 
prioritised over people

The West Link and inner ring road 
are wider barriers disconnecting 
residential and centre

Relative low cost of car/
taxi compared to bus

High number of 
surface car parks

Lack of integration 
between cycling and 
public transport hub

Page 33



3

A Bolder Vision for Belfast

8

Providing lively, safe and green streets linking inclusive shared spaces to 
promote resilience and enhance our built heritage.

Vibrant and Safe Streets

Active and Inclusive Public Realm and Green Spaces

“ ”

Strengths Challenges

This principle is underpinned by the following key themes for change:

Currently the City Centre is seen as a shared space 
that has a large availability of open space in streets 
and public realm. This provides a rich opportunity to 
reimagine and re-design the public realm, building on 
the Open Spaces Strategy to create more inclusive, safe 
and vibrant open and green spaces with the integration 
of biophilic design. There is potential to develop 
vacant land in the centre of Belfast, and through good 
design, provide the diversity in open space and 
land uses that would create a more vibrant and safer 
environment. This needs to capitalise on the existing 
assets such as the River Lagan and the built and 
natural heritage across the city.

The challenges identified highlight the lack of activity 
outside of working hours, which results in a perceived 
poor safety and secure environment. There is a general 
need for vibrancy and colour in the centre of Belfast’s 
streets that would attract activity and strengthen the 
sense of belonging. 

There is demand to deliver more leisure areas and 
high quality open spaces where people can exercise, 
play and rest. Both green and blue spaces should be 
enhanced and optimised using both soft and hard 
landscaping elements, further strengthened with flood 
mitigation, SuDS and biodiversity.

Poor safety and security 
in some areas

Lack of event space, 
linear parks & avenues

Vacant land is unsafe 
and inaccessible

Lack of diversity of 
space for different 
users/ages

Lack of public 
amenity

19% of retail units 
vacant within city centre

Vacant areas and wide open 
spaces cause fear for walkers

Successful in 
attracting night life

Shape developments to 
integrate green open spaces

New River Lagan cycle 
and pedestrian bridge Proximity to 

riverside park

Biodiversity for the 
river and its banks

Redevelop vacant land 
linking to Shared Space 
Design Principles

Integration of incidental 
play opportunities

New lighting and dressing 
strategy and cultural strategy

Page 34



Draft

9

Removing severance and barriers to movement between the centre 
of Belfast and the surrounding communities to improve access for all.  

Overcoming Severance with Surrounding Communities

Embracing our Rivers

“ ”

Strengths Challenges

This principle is underpinned by the following key themes for change:

The success of the centre of Belfast depends on its 
relationship with the surrounding communities and 
the wider city. Improving connections across existing 
severing infrastructure is essential, and places like 
the new Transport Hub at Weaver’s Cross have the 
opportunity to transform that. 

Building on the city’s existing assets is also key. 
Connecting the centre of Belfast with the River Lagan 
and the wider city can help to improve the quality of life 
and wellbeing in Belfast, as well as serve as a main route 
for active travel. Likewise, connecting further north to 
the Titanic Quarter can unlock further opportunities. 

One of the centre of Belfast’s main challenges is 
overcoming severance built over the last decades. The 
inner ring road and the motorway form a double 
barrier hindering connectivity to the wider city and 
creates a social disconnect between communities and 
reinforces segregration. Junctions over the Westlink 
are busy and unfriendly for other modes of transport 
than driving. Also historically, the river has not been a 
point of attention as an industrial city, and some of the 
latest development does not address it appropriately. 
The challenge is to transform these places so that they 
connect people rather than divide neighbourhoods. 

4

Unreliable public 
transport links to centre

Social disconnect 
between communities

Poor connections 
to city centre due to 
busy intersections

Inner ring road and Castle-
Court have a severing effect 
on surrounding communities

Lack of anchors along 
riverfront to attract users

Farset River is a 
hidden asset

Flood risk

Physical separation of commercial 
core from riverfront by A24

Infrastructure occupies 
land at riverfront

No cycle parking 
at riverfront

At places no building 
frontage along the river

Lack of good 
connectivity to 
the riverside

Region City Deal - 
Funding for transport/
culture/tourism

Large waterfront 
developments taking place

Iconic waterfront for art, 
culture, tourism, residential, 
leisure and retail

Continuous loops, 
boardwalks and bridges

Use river for 
taxis/leisure

New transport hub, 
train, buses, cycling 
and walking

Historic communities close 
to the heart of the city

Rebalance 
road space

Opportunity for 
communities to invest 
in vacant sites

Rebalance 
road space

Page 35



Prioritise to support walking, 
cycling and public transport

Lively, safe and green streets 
and our built heritage

Removing severance and 
barriers to movement

Healthy, shared, vibrant and 
sustainable environments

A Bolder Vision for Belfast

10

THE VISION
By 2035, the centre of Belfast will be a place where...

...the centre of Belfast is a shared and climate resilient place where talent is 
nurtured, people of all ages choose to live, work and visit, benefiting from 
breathing clean air and climate resilient place.

“ “

…where opportunities for sustainable investment and inclusive growth have 
been realised and everyone can move freely around, enjoying a wide choice of 

retail, leisure and cultural attractions.
“ “

1

...walking and cycling are the most common and easiest ways to move around 
and through the centre of the city. 

“ “
...cars are an unusual sight and it is quick and easy to use sustainable 

transport to get to and from the centre of the city. 
“ “

2

“…people of all ages and abilities socialise in the many parks and leisure spaces, 
which now exist where there was once vacant land and car parks. Lively streets are 
welcoming and our historic buildings are celebrated and repurposed. 

“

...main streets are green, tree lined and full of people. They are safe and 
shared spaces and have a variety of cultural activities taking place within 

them. ‘Entries’ are enticing and fun spaces to be explored. 

“ “

...the River Lagan is well connected to the city core with multiple crossing points, 
and activities and attractions taking place on the river and along its banks.

“ “

   ...the inner ring road is a linked network of parks, recreational spaces and 
green streets with many connections with the surrounding communities and 

the River Lagan. 

“ “

3

4

Page 36



Draft

11

...a bold vision has connected communities and realised transformational change.

Page 37



A Bolder Vision for Belfast

12

A Bolder Vision for Belfast establishes the principles 
required to adopt to deliver the ambitions we have for 
our city. The following concepts are transformational 
changes achieved by other cities and demonstrate  
what a bolder outlook for our City might be, through a 
series of ‘What If’ ideas. 

These ideas were identified through the engagement 
events held, they have been benchmarked against our 4 
Visioning Principles and are mostly intended to inspire 
potential solutions that will help deliver A Bolder Vision 
for Belfast. 

...the inner ring road became a 
circular park?

...the centre of Belfast was fully 
pedestrianised ?

...the city centre became the first place in 
Northern Ireland to become carbon neutral?

1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4

WHAT IF...?

Copenhagen, Denmark

Oslo, Norway

Krakow, Poland

Page 38



Freiburg, Germany

Draft

13

...everyone walks, cycles 
and takes public transport?

...connections to our train stations were 
pedestrian friendly, easy and colourful?

...you could swim in the River Lagan?

1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4

?...EVERYONE WAS PART OF THE CHANGE

CALL 
TO 

ACTION

Glasgow, UK

Copenhagen, Denmark

Page 39



A Bolder Vision for Belfast

14

WHAT IF...?

...public transport within the centre 
was free?

...buildings were reimagined to 
celebrate our unique heritage?

...we reconnected with the River Farset? 

1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4

...car parks became places for people 
rather than cars?

1 2 3 4

Utrecht, Netherlands

Glasgow, UK

Perth, Australia

Atlanta, USA

Page 40



Draft

15

...pedestrians and cyclists 
always had priority?

...there were green decks 
over the Westlink?

...the city centre became a place for 
everyone to play?

1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4

?...EVERYONE WAS PART OF THE CHANGE

CALL 
TO 

ACTION

Glasgow, UK

London, UK

Madrid, Spain

Page 41



Dra� Central 
Belfast Vision

Finalising the 
Vision

Engagement4 
VI

SI
ON

ING PRINCIPLES

CALL TO 
ACTION!

Delivering the Vision
Involving all parties in the 
process.
Civic Partners 
Businesses 
Communities

Delivery Plan

We are here

2020

2021
2022

Pilot Projects

2023

Open streets

Extend Glider 
network

Smart 
crossing

Free Glider day

Create wildlife 
meadow

Car free day

Temporary pool 
in River Lagan

Repurpose 
surface car park

Reprioritise key 
junctions

Pop-up parks 
and playgrounds

Belfast    2035!

A Bolder Vision for Belfast

16

NEXT STEPS
This Vision is the continuation of a journey for the city 
instigated with the Belfast Agenda and recent policies 
and strategies focusing on the centre of Belfast in 2035. 
Through continued public consultation and stakeholder 
engagement, the following stages will finalise the Vision 
around the Visioning Principles identified here. The 
Delivery Plan will be developed in coordination with 
this Vision, and it will set up the programme for the 
interventions with the most beneficial outcomes for the 
city.  

Fundamentally, for this Vision to be successful we need 
everyone to be part of this bold change. 

To be truly effective, this Vision will need to be 
supported by policies and strategies at city and 
metropolitan levels. It is key that further stages of 
A Bolder Vision for Belfast are developed in close 
collaboration with the Local Development Plan team 
and other agencies responsible for development, 
regeneration, environmental, transport and community 
policies. Any potential interventions will mean different 
things to each partner organisation. We need to 
consider how it will transform what we do. This will 
be addressed in Phase 2 where we will outline pilot 
projects that will test and embed our Vision.

Page 42



Draft

17

© Copyright 2019 Jacobs U.K. Limited. The concepts and information contained in this document are the 
property of Jacobs. Use or copying of this document in whole or in part without the written permission of 
Jacobs constitutes an infringement of copyright

Page 43



Page 44


	Agenda
	2a Supporting businesses and skills development work: refocusing activities as a result of COVID-19
	2b Engagement with Northern Ireland Executive: Committee for the Economy
	3a Engagement with Ministers
	3b Department for Infrastructure - Active Travel and Social Distancing Measures
	Item 3 (b) Appendix One - A bolder vision for Belfast


